
To: Daniel Kane, Sr., Local 239 Trustee 
From: Members of the Independent Review Board 
Re: Proposed Charges Against Former Local 239 Business Agents 

Anthony Evaristo and Milton Warren 
Date: June 13, 2000 

I. RECOMMENDATION 
The Independent Review Board ("IRB") refers the below report to the Local 239 

Trustee recommending he file charges against former Local 239 business agents Anthony 
Evaristo ("Evaristo") and Milton Warren ("Warren"). It appears that while officers and 
business agents of Local 239 Evaristo and Warren brought reproach upon the union by 
completing and submitting to the Local falsified Local business records, i.e., time allocation 
forms. The Local's accountants used these forms to help calculate reimbursement from the 
Local's Funds to the Local for time allegedly spent by Evaristo and Warren on Funds' 
business. Evaristo in ten instances submitted forms which falsely recorded that he did work 
for the Pension Fund in connection with companies that did not have pension obligations in 
their collective bargaining agreements with Local 239. Warren in four instances submitted 
forms which falsely recorded he did work for the Pension Fund in connection with employers 
that had no pension obligation in their collective bargaining agreements with Local 239. These 
false time claims were then projected over the course of a year to allocate Evaristo and 
Warren's time spent on Pension Fund matters to determine the percentage of their salary for 
which the Pension Fund should reimburse the Local. Their conduct violated New York State 



Penal Law § 175.05(l)(Falsifying Business Records) and 18 USC § 664 (1999)(Theft or 
Embezzlement from an Employee Benefit Plan). As a result of their conduct, it appears that 
Evaristo and Warren brought reproach upon the union and violated their membership oath in 
violation of Article II, Section 2(a) and Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1) and (2) of the IBT 
Constitution. 
n . INTRODUCTION 

A. Background 
Local 239 represents approximately 1,050 members in the New York City metropolitan 

area and New Jersey. (Ex. 1) Its jurisdiction is general automotive, electronics, synthetic and 
specialty products drivers, helpers and warehousemen. The Local shares office space with its 
affiliated benefit Funds at 2380 Hempstead Turnpike in East Meadow, New York. 

B. Anthony Evaristo and Milton Warren 
Evaristo was a Local 239 member from approximately 1980 until March 2000. (Ex. 2 

at 5-10) In 1994, Anthony Miceli ("Miceli"), the Local's then principal officer, appointed 
Evaristo a Local Trustee. In 1998, Miceli hired him as a Local business agent. He was also 
appointed as a Trustee to the Local's Funds. (Id.; Ex. 23) He served as a business agent and 
Local Trustee until his removal from the Local Executive Board in March 2000 when the 
General President placed Local 239 in trusteeship upon the IRB's recommendation. (Ex. 3) 
Evaristo's annual salary as a business agent in 1999 was $45,900. (Ex. 1) Local 239 issued 
Evaristo a withdrawal card in March 2000.(Ex. 4) 1 

1 Article XIX, Section 1(g) of the EBT Constitution provides that charges may be 
preferred against a suspended member or an inactive member who has been issued a withdrawal 



Warren was a Local 239 member from 1986 until September 1998. (Ex. 5 at 12-18) In 
1995 Miceli hired Warren as a Local business agent. He was also appointed a Local Trustee 
and Trustee of the Funds. (Id. at 13-15; Ex. 23) He remained in both these positions until 
February 1997 when Miceli fired him. (Id. at 99) In February 1997 Warren's annual salary 
was $45,000. (Ex. 5 at 18-20, Ex.6) Local 239 issued Warren a withdrawal card in September 
1998 (Ex. 4; Ex. 5 at 99) 
m . JURISDICTION 

Pursuant to Article XIX, Section 14(c)(1) of the IBT Constitution, this disciplinary 
matter is within the jurisdiction of the Local 239 Trustee. Paragraph G(e) of the March 14, 
1989 Consent Decree in United States v. International Brotherhood of Teamsters. 88 Civ. 
4486 (S.D.N.Y.) and Paragraph 1(6) of the Rules and Procedures for Operation of the IRB 
("the IRB Rules") require that within 90 days of the IRB's referral of a matter to an IBT entity, 
that entity must file with the IRB written findings setting forth the specific action taken and the 
reasons for that action. Pursuant to Paragraph 1(9) of the IRB Rules, not meeting this deadline 
may be considered a failure to cooperate with the IRB. 
IV . INVESTIGATIVE FINDINGS 
A. Cost Sharing Agreement Between Local 239 and the Pension and Health and 

Welfare Funds 

In 1993 Miceli instituted a cost sharing agreement among the Local, the Pension Fund 
and the Health and Welfare Fund. (Ex. 7 at 61-65, 72 ) According to a letter dated December 



31, 1996 from the Local's accountant to Edward Ferrari, the Administrator of the Funds, the 
Local's accountant stated that the "purpose [of the cost sharing agreement] is to support 
reimbursements from the affiliated Benefit Funds of wages and wage related expenses of Union 
officials." (Ex.8) A review of the Local's records disclosed that for the years 1995 through 
1999 salaries and expenses of the Local officers and three clerical employees were partially 
funded through this cost sharing agreement.2 (Ex. 9) In each of these years, except 1996, 
these officers kept time forms for two weeks in which they allegedly noted how much time they 
spent on business of the Local or the Pension Fund or the Health and Welfare Fund. 3 

According to Miceli, in addition the Local's accountants individually surveyed the clerical staff 
to calculate how much time they allocated to the Funds over a two week period. (Ex. 7 at 61-
70) Based on the allocation of time for this two-week period, the auditors extrapolated the 
annual percentage of time the Local employees spent on work for the Local, the Health and 
Welfare and Pension Funds respectively. Using these percentages, the salaries of these officers 
and clerical employees were apportioned among the Local, the Pension Fund and the Health 
and Welfare Fund. (Id.) The Funds paid the money to the general fund from which the Local 
then paid the salaries directly to the employees. Listed below are the percentage allocations 
between the Local and the Funds for the years 1995, 1996, 1997, 1998 and 1999 for each 
employee. 

2 In 1995, 1996 and 1997 Business Agent Milton Warren also allocated his time. In 1997 
Warren left the Local. 

3 In 1996 the same allocations were used as in 1995. (Ex.9) 



1995 1 9 9 6 1997 1 9 9 8 1999 Emplovee Local Funds Local Funds Tr>cal Funds Local FnnH<: T.ocal Funds 
Miceli 72 28 72 28 36 64 92 8 73 27 
Warren 51 49 51 49 62 38 - — — 

Evaristo 100 100 48 52 85 15 81 19 
Mart 50 50 50 50 50 50 42 58 42 58 
McDougal 35 65 35 65 35 65 54 46 54 46 
Heaney 25 75 25 75 25 75 8 92 8 92 
Conklin 0 100 0 100 0 100 0 100 0 100 

(Ex. 10) 
As a result of these allocations, the Local received from the Funds the following money for 
work reportedly done by all Local employees on behalf of the Funds: 

YEAR AMOUNT 
1995 $128,662 
1996 129,615 
1997 175,273 
1998 97.823 
Total $531,373 

The dollar amount that the Local was reimbursed from 1995 through 1999 from all the Local's 
Funds as well as the reimbursements from the Local's Pension Fund to the Local for work 
reportedly done by Evaristo and Warren were4: 

1995 
Total/Pension 

1996 
Total/Pension 

/ 

1997 
Total/Pension 

1998 
Total/Pension 

1999 
Total/Pension 

Evaristo -/-- / $16,877/5,473 $6,966/2,786 $8,823/4,179 
Warren $12,740/2,340 $12,740/2340 $11,274/2373 / _ _ / _ 

4 Total/Pension denotes Total Funds reimbursement / Pension Reimbursement. For 
example in 1995, the Local received $19,656 in total reimbursement from the Funds for work 
done by Miceli. Of that amount, the Pension Fund individually reimbursed the Local $4,914. 
These reimbursements do not include amounts paid for FICA, DBL, UI, Welfare Fund or Pension 
Fund contributions. 



B. Time Allocation Forms 
Given the limited time Local employees needed to maintain allocation forms, i.e., two 

weeks a year, and their importance in calculating how much money would flow from the Funds 
to the Local, the need to be accurate was obvious and the opportunity for negligent mistake was 
minimal. Moreover, as Trustees of the Local Funds, Evaristo and Warren had a heightened 
duty to insure that Funds money was spent properly. 

Evaristo testified that he completed his time allocation forms at or near the dates listed 
on the forms. He listed the shop he visited, how long he spent there and the portions of time 
he spent on Local or Funds matters. He testified as follows: 

Q: What does that represent? Are those the shops that you have been 
to? 

A: Yes, shops that I have been to. 
Q: So all the shops that are listed on those ten pages and when you 

denoted that there is a shop, and you have described what you did, 
does that signify that you actually, physically went to that shop? 

A: Yes. 
Q: And you spoke with those individuals? 
A; Well, whoever is there. You have to understand in our business 

there are drivers and stuff, you know, not all the time people are 
there. 

* * * 

Q: Who explained to you that you had to fill these reports out? 
A: Mr. Miceli. 
Q: What did he tell you that you can recall? 
A: He says when you go, go to a shop, put down what you did and 

write it in. (Ex.2 at 36-38) 
Warren testified that Miceii instructed him to fill out these time allocation forms. (Ex.5 

at 33) When he was out of the office, which was every weekday except Wednesday, he alleged 
he would compile on a tablet the shops he visited, the time spent at the shop and the amount of 



time he spent on Local, Health and Welfare and Pension matters. Warren would transcribe 
these figures to a time allocation form which he would give to the Local's office administrator. 
Warren acknowledged that if a shop did not have a pension obligation under its contract he 
would not discuss those issues in a visit. (M. at 33-39) 

C. Evidence of Fraud in Submission of Time Allocation Forms 

The time allocation forms Evaristo and Warren submitted since 1996 contained false 
entries to support the Local's receipt of reimbursement from the Local's Pension Fund for work 
the business agents allegedly did on behalf of the Pension Fund. Both Evaristo and Warren 
submitted time allocation forms indicating that they had done work on behalf of the Pension 
Fund at employers which did not provide pension benefits pursuant to their contracts. For 
example, Evaristo marked in his time allocation forms for August and September 1998 that he 
visited ten employers at which he did work on behalf of the Pension Fund when in fact none of 
these employers had pension obligations under their contracts. (Ex.9) Similarly, Warren 
submitted time allocation forms for June 1997 that in at least four instances indicated that he 
did work for the Pension Fund at employers which did not have pension obligations under their 
contracts. As employee Trustees for the Pension Fund, Evaristo and Warren had a heightened 
duty to insure the Pension Fund's money was properly spent and records authorizing its release 
were accurate. They violated their fiduciary duties. 
1. Evaristo's False Submissions 

Evaristo submitted time allocation forms which claimed that he had worked on issues for 
the Pension Fund at employers which did not have pension obligations under their contracts. 



Evaristo indicated that on August 24, 1998 he visited C&S Industries and spent five minutes on 
pension matters there although the Local's contract with C&S Industries provided no pension 
benefits. (Ex. 9; Ex. 11) On August 25, 1998, he claimed that he visited three separate 
employers, Andes Metal, Alray Car Care and Oasis Auto, where he respectively spent five, ten 
and five minutes on pension matters. (Ex.9) None of these employers had collective bargaining 
agreements which provided for pension benefits. (Exs. 12,13,14) Evaristo indicated that on 
August 27, 1998 he visited Perishable Transport and Hampton Entertainment Charter and 
worked on pension issues for five minutes in each shop. (Ex.9) Neither employer had pension 
obligations under its contract. (Exs. 15, 16) Evaristo indicated that on August 31, 1998 he 
visited Huntington Brake and New Hyde Park Auto and worked on pension issues at both for 
five minutes each. Neither had pension obligations under its contract. (Exs.9,17,18) He 
claimed that on September 3, 1998 he visited Quality Auto and worked on pension issues for 
five minutes there. This company also did not have a pension obligation under its contract with 
the Local. (Exs.9,19) Evaristo claimed that on September 4, 1998 he spent five minutes 
working on pension matters at Eastside Locks. This company did not have a pension obligation 
under its contract. (Exs.9,20) 
2. Warren's False Submissions 

Warren admitted that he did not discuss pensions with any employer that did not have a 
pension obligations under its contract. (Ex.5 at 36-37) Yet Warren submitted time allocation 
forms which in four instances claimed that he had worked on pension issues for the Funds at 
employers which did not have pension obligations written in their contracts. (Ex.9) He claimed 
that on June 12, 1997 he spent fifteen minutes at Alray Car Parts working on pension matters 



although the Local's contract with Alray provided no pension benefits. (Ex. 13) He claimed 
that on June 9, 1997 he spent his entire forty-five minute visit to Stone Distributors on pension 
issues. Stone Distributors did not have a pension obligations under its contract with the Local. 
(Ex.21) Warren claimed that on June 5, 1997 he spent 15 minutes on pension work at 
Huntington Brake. (Ex. 17) Huntington Brake did not have a pension obligation under its 
contract. Warren reported that on June 3, 1997 he devoted fifteen minutes to pension matters 
at Columbia Carburetor although this company also had no pension obligation under its contract 
with the Local. (Ex. 22) 
V. ANALYSIS 

By submitting to the Local falsified Local business records which were used to calculate 
reimbursement from the Local's Pension Fund to the Local for work allegedly done by them 
on behalf of the Pension Fund, Evaristo and Warren violated New York Penal Law § 175.05(1) 
(falsifying business records in the second degree) and 18 USC § 664 (theft or embezzlement 
from an employee benefit plan). 

New York Penal Law § 175.05(1) states: 
A person is guilty of falsifying business records in the second degree 
when, with intent to defraud, he makes or causes a false entry in the 
business records of an enterprise. 

Evaristo and Warren violated this statute by falsifying their time allocation forms, a Local 
business record, and submitting them to the Local for calculation of reimbursement for the 
time allegedly spent by them on Funds work. See People v. Cambria. 612 NYS 2d 22 (1994, 
1st Dept.) appeal denied 617 NYS 2d 143; People v. Burt 668 NYS 2d 413 (1998, 3d Dept) 



app denied 676 NYS 2d 133. 
18 USC § 664 (1999) states: 

Any person who embezzles, steals, or unlawfully and willfully abstracts or 
converts to his own use or to the use of another, any of the moneys, funds, 
securities, premiums, credits, property, or other assets of any employee welfare 
benefit plan or employee pension benefit plan, or of any fund connected 
therewith, shall be fined under this title, or imprisoned not more than five years, 
or both. 

The purpose of this statute is to "preserve the designated funds for those entitled to their 
benefits." United States v. Andreen. 628 F. 2d 1236, 1242 (9th Cir. 1980) Moreover, courts 
have interpreted this statute to go "beyond traditional concepts of embezzlement in that it 
imposes liability for intentional breach of special fiduciary duties imposed by other regulatory 
statutes or governing instruments." Id. Evaristo and Warren submitted to the Local falsified 
time allocation forms and caused monies from the Local Pension Fund to be diverted to the 
Local's general fund. In doing so they violated their fiduciary duties as Trustees to the Pension 
Fund. Intent was inferred through their affirmative misrepresentations in the time allocation 
forms that they had done pension work for companies which did not have pension obligations in 
their contracts with Local 239. See United States v. Busacca. 936 F. 2d 232 (6 t h Cir. 1991) 
That Evaristo and Warren did not directly take money for themselves from the Pension Fund is 
not a defense. See United States v. Santiago. 528 F.2d 1130 (1976) cert, denied 425 U.S. 972 
( defendant who diverted monies earmarked for union's welfare fund into genera) coffers 
violated 18 USC § 664). Cf. United States v. Vitale. 489 F. 2d 1367, 1370 (6 t h Cir. 1974). 
Moreover, a violation of 18 USC § 664 does not require that the misappropriation was for the 
personal advantage of the defendant. (SRP. United States v. Santiago. 528 F.2d 1130 (1976) 



cert, denied 425 U.S. 972; United States v. Harrelson. 223 F. Supp. 869 (E.D. Michigan. 
1963). 

As a result of their conduct, Evaristo and Warren brought reproach upon the union and 
violated their membership oaths in violation of Article II Section 2(a) and Article XIX, Section 
7(b)(1) and (2) of the IBT Constitution. 

VI. CONCLUSION 
Based upon the foregoing, it is recommended that Anthony Evaristo and Milton Warren 

be charged as follows: 
A. Anthony Evaristo 

While a business agent and officer of Local 239, you brought reproach upon the IBT in 
violation of Article II, Section 2(a) and Article XIX, Sections 7(b)(1) and (2) by falsifying 
Local business records, to wit: 

From on or about August 1,1998 to September 30,1998, as a business agent of Local 
239, you completed and submitted false Local business records, time allocation sheets, which 
in ten instances falsely recorded that you had done Local 239 Pension Fund work on behalf of 
a company which in fact did not have a pension obligation under its contract with Local 239. 
These forms were used to calculate reimbursement of money over the course of a year to the 
Local from the Pension Fund for work allegedly done by you on behalf of the Pension Fund. 
In submitting these records you falsified Local business records and embezzled from the Local's 
Pension Fund as the Fund paid money to the Local on the basis of these forms. You did this in 
violation of your fiduciary obligation as a Trustee of the Pension Fund. 

11 



B. Milton Warren 
While a business agent and officer of Local 239, you brought reproach upon the IBT in 

violation of Article II, Section 2(a) and Article XIX, Sections 7(b)(1) and (2) of the IBT 
Constitution by falsifying Local business records, to wit: 

From on or about June 1, 1997 to June 30, 1997, as a business agent of Local 239, you 
completed and submitted false Local business records, time allocation sheets, which in four 
instances falsely recorded that you had done Local 239 Pension Fund work on behalf of a 
company which in fact did not have a pension obligation under its contract with Local 239. 
These forms were used to calculate reimbursement of money over the course of a year to the 
Local from the Pension Fund for work allegedly done by you on behalf of the Pension Fund. 
In submitting these records you falsified Local business records and embezzled from the Local's 
Pension Fund as the Pension Fund paid money to the Local on the basis of these forms. You 
did this in violation of your fiduciary obligation as a Trustee of the Pension Fund. 



EXHIBIT LIST 

Local 239 Form LM-2, Labor Organization Annual Report for 1998 
Transcript of Anthony Evaristo's December 1, 1999 IRB Sworn Examination 
IRB Report dated February 24, 2000 recommending Trusteeship for Local 239 
Local 239 dues records for Anthony Evaristo and Milton Warren 
Transcript of Milton Warren's December 8, 1999 IRB Sworn Examination 
Local 239 Form-LM2, Labor Organization Annual Report for 1997 
Transcript of Anthony Miceli's December 1, 1999 IRB Sworn Examination 
Letter dated December 31, 1996 from the Local 239 Accountant to Edward 
Ferrari, Local 239 Fund Administrator 
Local 239 Cost Sharing and Allocation Records for 1995 through 1999 
Local 239 Cost Sharing Schedule 
Local 239 Collective Bargaining Agreement with C&S Industries 
Local 239 Collective Bargaining Agreement with Andes Metal Fin. Co. Inc. 
Local 239 Collective Bargaining Agreement with Alray Car Parts and Supply 
Corp. 
Local 239 Collective Bargaining Agreement with Oasis Auto Parts-Holbrook 
Local 239 Collective Bargaining Agreement with Perishable Transport Inc. 
Local 239 Collective Bargaining Agreement with Hampton Entertainment 
Charters 
Local 239 Collective Bargaining Agreement with Huntington Brake Service Inc. 
Local 239 Collective Bargaining Agreement with New Hyde Park Auto 
Local 239 Collective Bargaining Agreement with Quality Auto Parts 
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Local 239 Collective Bargaining Agreement with Eastside Locks 
Local 239 Collective Bargaining Agreement with Stone Distributors Co., Inc. 
Local 239 Collective Bargaining Agreement with Columbia Carburetor Co. Inc. 
Local 239 Pension Fund 1997 Form 5500, Schedule C, pg. 2 
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INDEPENDENT REVIEW BOARD 
444 North Capitol Street, NW, Suite 528 

Washington, DC 20001 
(202) 434-8080 

Facsimile (202) 434-8084 
Corruption Hotline (800) CALL IRB 

Chief Investigator: 
Charles M. Carberry, Esq. 
17 Battery Place, Suite 331 
New York, NY 10004 
Administrator: 
John J. Cronin, Jr. 

November 13, 2000 

James P. Hoffa, General President 
International Brotherhood of Teamsters 
25 Louisiana Avenue, N.W. 
Washington, D. C. 20001-2198 

Re: Decision on Charges Against Local 239 
Former Business Agent Milton Warren 

Dear Mr. Hoffa: 

Board Members: 
Grant Crandall, Esq. 

Crandall, Pyles, Haviland & Turner 
122 Capitol Street, Suite 300 

Charleston, WV 25301 
Frederick B. Lacey, Esq. 

LeBoeuf, Lamb, Greene & MacRae 
One Riverfront Plaza 

Newark, NJ 07102-5490 
William H. Webster, Esq. 

Milbank, Tweed, Hadley & McCloy 
1825 Eye Street, NW, Suite 1100 

Washington, DC 20006 

The Independent Review Board has reviewed your decision of 
October 31, 2000, in the above captioned matter, and finds the 
decision to be not inadequate. 

Very truly yours, 
Members of the 
Independent Review Board 

By: 

cc: Patrick J. Szymanski, Esq. 
Mr. Milton Warren 

. Cronin, Jr. 
listrator 

Pursuant to the Consent Order of the United States District Court, S.D.N.Y. 
United States -v- International Brotherhood of Teamsters 88 CIV 4486 (DNE) 



I N T E R N A T I O N A L 
B R O T H E R H O O D O F T E A M S T E R S 

A F L - C I O 

OFFICE OF 
J A M E S P. H O F F A October 31, 2000 GENERAL PRESIDENT 

SENT VIA FACSIMILE AND FIRST CLASS MAIL 

John J. Cronin Jr., Administrator 
Independent Review Board 
444 North Capitol Street, N.W. 
Suite 528 
Washington, D.C. 20001 

Re: Milton Warren 
Dear Mr. Cronin: 

I have received your October 18, 2000, letter stating that the Board 
has found my decisions on charges against Milton Warren and another 
individual to be inadequate. As a result of the Board's findings, I have 
reviewed and reexamined the record, the panel's recommendation, and my 
conclusions. 

With regard to the Warren decision, I note that there was a finding 
that Warren may have falsified business records. Upon reconsideration of 
the seriousness of the offense, I modify the penalty to suspend Warren from 
membership for one (1) year. With the exception of the length of Warren's 
suspension, all other conditions and restrictions on his suspension as stated 
in my original decision in this case still apply. Upon further consideration of 
the seriousness of Warren's offense, I have also determined that an 
additional sanction is warranted. Accordingly, Warren is barred from 
holding office or employment with Local 239 or any other IBT-affiliated 
entity for a period of two (2) years. 

Respectfully submitted, 

JPH/jkp 
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